SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MONTHLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

1907 VOYLES STREET, SW

LIVE OAK, FL 32064

TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR
MARCH 9, 2026, AT 6:00 P.M.

Invocation
Pledge to American Flag

ATTENTION

e The Board may add additional items to this agenda.

e Affirmative action on any item includes authorization of the Chairman’s, or designee’s,
signature on all associated documents.

e Speakers from the audience will be allowed three (3) minutes to speak following recognition
by the Chairman. Speakers may only make one (1) trip to the podium regarding each item
they wish to speak on. They shall complete one comment card for each item and submit the
card(s) to the Chairman before the meeting is called to order.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. January 12, 2026, Regular Meeting Pages 1-4 Don Hale

PUBLIC CONCERNS AND COMMENTS - 3 Minute Limit

CONSENT

TIME SPECIFIC ITEMS

2. Title VI Plan Pages 5-63 Candice Kennon
STAFF ITEMS
3. Financial Update Page 64-68 Monica Marquardt

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS

BOARD ATTORNEY ITEMS




SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
MONTHLY MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

1907 VOYLES STREET, SW

LIVE OAK, FL 32064

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

4. CARC Parking (Discussion) Stephen Mercer, Nick Furst, Christine Bolyard,

Monica Marquardt, Candice Kennon
5. Leave Policy (Discussion) Candice Kennon, Stephen Mercer
6. SVTA Policies & Procedures Revision (Discussion) Candice Kennon, Stephen Mercer

GENERAL BUSINESS

7. Additional Agenda Items. The Chairman calls for additional items.
8. Board Members’ Inquiries, Requests, and Comments
9. Administrator’s Comments

Upcoming meeting: May 11, 2026, at 6:00 P.M.

**TENTATIVE** 2026 Meeting Schedule
January 12t

March gth

May 11t

July 13t

August 10" (Budget Proposal)
September 14t

November 9t"

2027
January 11t



Page 1

January 12, 2026

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

MINUTES
of the
GOVERNING BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6:00 p.m.
OPENING AND INVOCATION:

The Governing Board of Directors of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority met on
the above date and time for a regular meeting.
Chairperson Don Hale called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. The invocation and

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America were held.

ATTENDING:

The following Board members were present: Chairperson Don Hale and
Commissioners Everett Phillips, James Howell, and Leo Mobley. Commissioners Rocky Ford
and Robby Roberson were not present.

Also present were Board Attorney Stephen Mercer, Board Secretary Eric Musgrove,
SVTA Administrator Candice Kennon, and SVTA employees Monica Marquardt and Tammy

Cunningham.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The first item on the agenda was to approve the minutes of the November 3, 2025,

Regular Meeting.

The second item on the agenda was to approve the minutes of the December 11,

2025, Special Meeting.
Commissioner Phillips moved to approve the minutes of the November 3, 2025,
Regular Meeting and December 11, 2025, Special Meeting. Commissioner Mobley

seconded, and the motion carried unanimously (4-0).



Page 2

January 12, 2026

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

PUBLIC CONCERNS AND COMMENTS:

There were none.

CONSENT:

There were none.

TIME SPECIFIC ITEMS:

There were none.

STAFF ITEMS:

The third item on the agenda was to hear a financial update.

Mrs. Marquardt noted a change in how quarterly updates would be presented to the
Board and asked for any questions.
Brief discussion ensued on maintenance costs, invoicing, and a 5311 off-cycle grant

to which SVTA had applied.

BOARD MEMBER ITEMS:

Chairman Hale asked about clarification on the Citizens’ Advocates for Citizens with
Disabilities (aka CARC) parking area in Lake City that had been discussed in prior meetings.

Administrator Kennon stated that she would be able to discuss the issue in more
detail in March once she met with the CARC property owners.

Commissioner Phillips stated that he had heard back from the CARC parking lot owner
and there were more lights, fences, and security than before, so hopefully it would meet
Federal, State, and SVTA requirements.

Brief discussion ensued on the topic.

Chairman Hale noted a new Suwannee County Veterans’ Affairs Officer and
suggested that SVTA staff contact them for veterans’ transportation purposes.

Discussion continued on the matter.



Page 3

January 12, 2026

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

BOARD ATTORNEY ITEMS:

There was nothing other than continued discussion about the CRAC parking lot in

Lake City.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS:

The fourth item on the agenda was adoption of a new SVTA Drug and Alcohol Policy.

Mrs. Cunningham stated that policy came from the Florida Department of
Transportation (FDOT) to replace the current policy based upon the newest laws. Testing
positive for either drugs or alcohol would be grounds for immediate termination, but SVTA
could also refer them to professionals to help with their substance abuse problem.

Discussion ensued on pre-employment and random testing.

Attorney Mercer had no problems with the policy as written.

Commissioner Howell moved to adopt a new SVTA Drug and Alcohol Policy.

Commissioner Mobley seconded, and the motion carried unanimously (4-0).

GENERAL BUSINESS:

The fifth item on the agenda was additional agenda items.

There were none.

The sixth item on the agenda was Board Inquiries, Requests, and Comments.

There were none.

The seventh item on the agenda was Administrator’s comments.

Administrator Kennon noted that several policies were being updated for approval
at a future meeting, titles for several employees had been changed to allow better access to
training, and better employee access to updated policies.

Discussion ensued on the upcoming meeting schedule for the year and on other

transportation-related meetings.



Page 4

January 12, 2026

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Conference Room
Live Oak, Florida

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Phillips moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Howell
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously (4-0).

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:24 p.m.

Approved and adopted the day of ,2026
Eric Musgrove Don Hale
Secretary to the Board Chair, Board of Directors



Suwanee Valley Transit Authority
Title VI Plan

Date Adopted: March 9, 2026

WE
L




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

=] = oI TR 1

Title VI/Nondiscrimination Policy Statement and Management Commitment to Title VI Plan ................... 4
Introduction & DeSCriPLioN Of SEIVICES ....cicuiiiiiciiie et e e see e e e s e e e s saar e e e enaeaeeesannreeeean 5
THEIE VI LIISON 1ttt ettt ettt e bt e s bt e s ae e s at e s bt e bt e s beesbe e emeeenteebeenbeesbeesanenas 5
AIErNate Title VI CONTACT. .. .eictieiieeiieee ettt st sttt b e bt st st e e e e sbeesbeesane e 5

First Time Applicant REQUITEMENTS. ... ..uiii ittt e e e s e e e e sare e e e s sbee e s senreeeeenareeas 6
Annual Certifications aNd ASSUIANCES. .....ccutiiiiiiiiieiieeete et ettt ste e s bee e sbeesbeeesseeesabeeesareesaseesaneeesreeeans 8
IR TSIV o T a1 Ye oY o) d o o TP PP 8
Title VINOLICE 10 the PUBIIC ..ottt sttt 9
NOTICE 10 the PUBIIC.cc.eeieiieei ettt sttt esbe e saeesaee e 9

N\ [ X a[ol=I oo 1oy u T =4 Mo Yot [o] o K3 PPN 9
Title VI Procedures and COMPIANCe ......uuiiiuiiiiiiiiiieeeiiee ettt sree e e e e s e e e s atae e e s abaeessnbeeesenareeas 10
(0o T 00 ]'o] 1101 A 2 oYl =Te [T o PP PR 10
(0o T 0] o] =110 A o T s s TP PP 10
Record Retention and RePOrtiNg POIICY .....ccuueii ittt ettt e et e e e e ctte e e e e ara e e e enreeeeeanes 10
Subrecipient Assistance and MONITOIING .......ccuuiiiiiiiie e et e e ebre e e e sbee e e e abeee e eeareeas 11
CoNtractors aNd SUDCONTIACTOIS .. .coiuiiiiieieeteeeet ettt ettt ettt b e sbe e st e st e e beesbeesaeesaeenas 11
NONAISCrIMINATION CLAUSES. .......iiiiiiiieiieee ettt sttt e r e s sae e s resneereenns 11
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) POICY ....c.uiecvieeiiieiiee ettt e 12
YT 1 Y PR 12
Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and LAWSUITS .......ccuueeeeiiiiieeiiiie et eeree e et e e e e e e e eaba e e e eareeas 13
0] o) [ ol oY ol o Y=Y 4o o T ud - o [P P 14
CUrrent OULrEaCh EFfOrtS ....o.ei ittt sttt be e sae e saee e 14
Language ASSISTANCE PIAN ......ooiieiiiecccee et e e e e s e e e et e e e e abe e e e e nabaee e e abaeeeenareeas 16
Transit Planning and AdViSOry BOIES ......ccccuuiiiiiiiiiieieiiiee ettt e et e e esree e e sivee e s sare e e e sataeeesnbaeesennbaeesennsenas 17
Title VI EQUILY ANGIYSIS c..neeiiiieiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e s e annb e e e e eeeeeseanssraaeeeeesennnsnrennneens 18
System-Wide Service Standards and Service POlICIES.......coccuiiiiiiie et 19
Service STaNardsS......cooceeeiiiieiiee e Error! Bookmark not defined.
ON-Time PerformMance........cccceereerierienieeieeeesee et Error! Bookmark not defined.
Service AVailability ....c..eeiieiieeice Error! Bookmark not defined.




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

SEIVICE POLICIES oo Error! Bookmark not defined.

Distribution of Transit AMeNities......cc.ccevvverrerreenienieneee e, Error! Bookmark not defined.

Vehicle ASSIZNMENT........iiiiiiiie e ebae e e eane Error! Bookmark not defined.
Yo7 o 1=Y oo Lol E - U SPP 20
Appendix A FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit Providers .......ccccocceeevivveeeiicnenenn. 21
Appendix B Current System DeSCriPiON........iiiciiie ettt e e et e e s e rra e e e esare e e eebraeesannsaeeean 24
Appendix C Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting MiINULES ..........eeeiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt aree e s aane e 27
Appendix D Title VI Sample NOtice 10 PUBIIC ......uviiiieiiee et 29
Appendix E COMPIINT FOMM oottt sttt e e e e s ta e e e satae e e snanseee e nsbaeesnnssaeeens 31
Appendix F Public Participation Plan ........c.ueei ittt st s e e s e e e s aaaeeean 36
Appendix G Language AsSSISTANCE Plan.........cii ittt e e e e e ra e e s naraeeean 40
Appendix H Operating Area Language Data: ........cooccviiiieiiiee ettt eertte e e tae e e eeaae e e e breeesenaaeeean 46
FiN Yo X<l aTo [ QN DT o ={= o] o Lol \V =T o - SR 49
Appendix J Title VI EQUILY ANGIYSIS...ccuuiiiiiciiii ettt ee et e et e s e sta e e e saae e s ssasaeeessssseeeesnssaeesnnssaeenns 53

TABLES

Table 1 | Summary of Investigations, Lawsuits, and COmMPIaints .........ccceeceeeriieeciiie e e 13
Table 2 | Transit Planning and AdViSOry BOArds .........ccccecueeeciieeriiieeiiieesieeecieeesreesreessvreesreeessaeesareeevaeesanas 17
Table 3 | VENIcle LOad........cccuiiiiieeciee ettt et Error! Bookmark not defined.
Table 4 | Vehicle HEadWay ........c..cccveeeiiiieciieciee ettt ettt vee e Error! Bookmark not defined.




Preface

This template has been developed by the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District Two in
coordination with the FDOT Central Office in order to assist transit agencies with the development of their
Title VI Plan. Although each agency is different in size, organization structure, operations, etc., minimum
Title VI compliance requirements are common to all. This template document is intended to assist smaller
transit agencies that often do not have adequate resources to develop a Title VI Plan in accordance with
the minimum requirements of Section 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 and Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Circular 4702.1B. It should be noted that this template covers the Title VI requirements
for Subrecipient transit providers that operate less than 50 vehicles in peak service and are located in
urbanized areas (UZA) of less than 200,000 population and rural transit providers.

While the development, adoption, and implementation of a Title VI Plan that complies, at a minimum, with
the requirements set forth by FTA Circular 4702.1B is mandatory, the agencies have the prerogative to
either utilize this template or enhance their existing Title VI Plan with the information contained in this
document. If an agency decides to utilize this template, they will have to customize this document to fit
their agency ensuring compliance with FTA Circular 4702.1B, adopt the document, and implement and
comply with the Title VI Plan.

It is important to note that the Department is not requiring transit agencies to adopt this template. Transit
agencies must, however, adopt a Title VI Plan which addresses all of the requirements of FTA Circular
4702.1B which apply to their agency. The intent of the Department was to develop a document which
addresses the provisions of the circular and provide it to local transit agencies as a means of helping them
reduce their administrative burden in preparing or updating their Title VI Plans. We believe this document
will be invaluable to you in this regard. In developing this document, it was understood that some transit
agencies may elect to adopt the template document as a whole with little customization. This decision is up
to the local transit agency. It must be understood, however, that future compliance reviews will examine
your policies and observed practices to ensure that they are consistent with the Title VI Plan you have
adopted, and also compliant with FTA Circular 4702.1B.

To use this template, open the electronic file contained in the Title VI Plan Template CD in Microsoft Word
and save the file with an appropriate name (e.g., “Agency Name Bus System Title VI Plan.doc”). You will
quickly note that the Template Document has been color coded to help you distinguish between the actual
requirements of FTA Circular 4702.1B, and optional language we have provided that might assist you in
developing your plan or elaborating on how your agency is addressing the requirements of FTA Circular
4702.1B.

Text  Any text highlighted in yellow color should be replaced with your agency’s information.

Text Any text highlighted in blue color are instructions for completion of the template. Please delete all
blue highlighted text prior to completion of the Plan.

Text appearing within the blue shaded boxes is informational only and may provide instructions or
other information that will help you in customizing your Title VI Plan.

Text  Any text appearing in green color represents optional or suggested language that may assist you
in explaining or elaborating on how you are meeting the intent of the requirement.

Text appearing within the bordered boxes as well as the black text found within the section
E descriptions which follow, represent the actual requirements as stated in FTA Circular 4702.1B, or
provides information directly related to the requirements.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Certain FTA Circular 4702.1B requirements are very prescriptive and the requirements are defined in great
detail. Under these circumstances, it would be redundant to explain the requirements twice (once in the
bordered box and then restate again within the general text that would follow). When such circumstances
occur, it will be noted within the bordered box and the general text will be deferred to in summarizing the
requirement.

Remember, in the context of FTA Circular 4702.1B, some requirements are not always prescriptive and
detailed. Some portions of FTA Circular 4702.1B simply obligate the agency to define or develop a policy
or procedure to explain how the agency will meet the intent of the requirement. The language the
Department has developed in the green colored text is optional or example language crafted to assist you
in these instances. You are not required to use it. Whether you elect to use the optional green text is entirely
up to you, but please ensure that any green text utilized applies precisely to your agency. Regardless, your
policy or procedure must comply with the requirements set forth by FTA Circular 4702.1B. Also, note that
this Template is geared towards satisfying the requirements of FTA Circular 4702.1B only. You may have
to incorporate additional policies and procedures to meet the requirements of other regulatory agencies, as
appropriate. You can also customize the appendices as needed to supplement the Title VI Plan.

If you have any questions related to this document, please feel free to contact Ms. Geanelly Reveron;
District Two ISD Modal Manager at Geanelly.Reveron@dot.state.fl.us or 904-360-5684.



mailto:Geanelly.Reveron@dot.state.fl.us

Date

Title VI Document Activity Log

Activity

(Review/Update/Addendum/

Concerned Person

(Signature)

RENENS

Adoption/Distribution)

04/15/2014

Version 1 — created the template
to assist the agencies

Doreen Joyner-
Howard

Distributed to
agencies via email

06/10/2022

Version 2 — Updated language
data tables and demographic
maps using 2020 census data.
Changed “Your Community
Transit” to “Agency Name”.
Added Spanish translation of
Notice to the Public and
Complaint Form.

Updated Appendix C to remove
“FDOT Concurrence Letter”.
Added language to Appendix F
to include strategies to engage
hard-to-reach populations.
Changed JPA to PTGA.

Doreen Joyner-
Howard

Distributed to
agencies via email

11/14/2022

Adopted by SVTA Board of
Directors

Larry Sessions

02/26/2026

Version 3 — Updated contact
information for the FDOT D2 ISD
Modal Manager

Geanelly Reveron

Distributed to
agencies via email

03/09/2026

Updated to reflect current
Administrator Contact
Information. Updated FDOT
awards/funding.

Candice T. Kennon

03/09/2026

Adopted by SVTA Board of
Directors

Candice T. Kennon

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Title VI/Nondiscrimination Policy Statement and Management
Commitment to Title VI Plan

49 CFR Part 21.7(a): Every application for Federal financial assistance to which this part applies shall contain, or
be accompanied by, an assurance that the program will be conducted or the facility operated in compliance with

all requirements imposed or pursuant to [49 CFR Part 21].

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority assures the Florida Department of Transportation that no person shall
on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, family, or religious status, as provided by Title VI
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and the Florida Civil Rights Act of
1992 be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination
or retaliation under any program or activity undertaken by the agency.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority further agrees to the following responsibilities with respect to its
programs and activities:

1. Designate a Title VI Liaison that has a responsible position within the organization and access to
the recipient’s Chief Executive Officer or authorized representative.

2. Issue a policy statement signed by the Executive Director or authorized representative, which
expresses its commitment to the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI. The policy statement shall
be circulated throughout the Recipient’s organization and to the general public. Such information
shall be published where appropriate in language other than English.

3. Insert the clauses of Section 4.5 of this plan into every contract subject to the Acts and the
Regulations.

4. Develop a complaint process and attempt to resolve complaints of discrimination against Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority.

5. Participate in training offered on the Title VI and other nondiscrimination requirements.

6. If reviewed by FDOT or any other state or federal regulatory agency, take affirmative actions to
correct any deficiencies found within a reasonable time period, not to exceed ninety (90) days.

7. Have a process to collect racial and ethnic data on persons impacted by the agency’s programs.

8. Submit the information required by FTA Circular 4702.1B to the primary recipients (refer to
Appendix A of this plan)

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal funds,
grants, loans, contracts, properties, discounts, or other federal financial assistance under all programs and
activities and is binding. The person whose signature appears below is authorized to sign this assurance
on behalf of the agency.

Signature

Candice T. Kennon
Administrator, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, Date: March 9, 2026




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Introduction & Description of Services

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority submits this Title VI Plan in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, 49 CFR Part 21, and the guidelines of FTA Circular 4702.1B, published October 1, 2012.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is a Subrecipient of FTA funds and provides service in Columbia,
Hamilton, & Suwannee Counties. A description of the current Suwannee Valley Transit Authority system is
included in Appendix B.

Title VI Liaison

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Candice Kennon, Administrator
(386) 362-5332 ext. 6321

1907 Voyles Street, SW

Live Oak, Florida 32064

Alternate Title VI Contact
Tammy Cunningham
Human Resources Manager
(386) 362-5332 ext. 0649
1907 Voyles Street, SW
Live Oak, Florida 32064

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority must designate a liaison for Title VI issues and complaints within the
organization. The liaison is the focal point for Title VI implementation and monitoring of activities receiving
federal financial assistance. Key responsibilities of the Title VI Liaison include:

= Maintain knowledge of Title VI requirements.

= Attend training on Title VI and other nondiscrimination authorities when offered by FDOT or any
other regulatory agency.

= Disseminate Title VI information to the public including in languages other than English, when
necessary.

= Develop a process to collect data related to race, gender and national origin of service area
population to ensure low income, minorities, and other underserved groups are included and not
discriminated against.

= Implement procedures for the prompt processing of Title VI complaints.




FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter lll, Paragraph 3: Entities applying for FTA funding for the first time shall provide information

regarding their Title VI compliance history if they have previously received funding from another Federal agency.

First Time Applicant Requirements
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is not a first-time applicant for FTA/FDOT funding. The following is a summary of
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s current and pending federal and state funding.

Current and Pending FTA Funding

1. [Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities-Section 5310], [04/30/2025-10/28/2026],
[$337,413], [Current]

2. [Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities-Section 5310], [2025-2026], [$270,000],
[Pending]

3. [Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities-Section 5310], [2026-2027], [$295,560],
[Pending]

4. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [11/29/2023-12/31/2026], [$791,362], [Current]
5. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [05/12/2025-03/31/2028], [$604,979], [Current]
6. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2025-2026], [$592,585], [Current]

7. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2025-2026], [$122,373], [Current]

8. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2025-2026], [$381,368], [Current]

9. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2025-2026], [$76,600], [Pending]

10. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2026-2027], [$328,399], [Pending]

11. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2026-2027], [$715,525], [Pending]

12. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2026-2027], [$191,661], [Pending]

13. [Formula Grants For Rural Area-Section 5311], [2026-2027], [$370,539], [Pending]

14. [Section 5339: Rural Bus & Facilities], [02/13/2026-02/10/2028], [$351,257], [Current]

15. [Section 5339: Rural Bus & Facilities], [2026-2027], [$1,229,738], [Pending]

Current and Pending FDOT Funding

1. None

Current and Pending Federal Funding (non-FTA)

1. None

Current and Pending State Funding (non-FDOT)

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

1. [Florida Commission For The Transportation Disadvantaged Trip & Equipment Grant], [07/01/2025-
06/30/2025], [$657,135.90], [Current]

2. [Shirley Conroy Rural Area Capital Assistance Grant], [09/16/2025-06/30/2026], [$72,956], [Current]




FTA Circulor 4702.18, Chapter ili, Parogroph 2: Every opplicotion for financiol ossistance from FTA must be
occomponied by on ossuronce that the opplicant will corry out the progrom in compliance with the Title Wi
regulotions.

During the previous three years, Florida Department of Transportation did complete a Title VI compliance
review of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has been found to be in
noncompliance with any civil rights requirements.

Agency DID have a triennial in which Title VI findings were identified.

The following is a summary of the compliance review.

a. Date of the compliance review:
December 3, 2025

b. The purpose or reason for the review:
Triennial Review

c. Agency or organization that performed the review
Florida Department of Transportation

d. Summary of the findings and recommendations of the review

Description:

1. The planis signed by the previous Administrator (Larry Sessions). The plan needs to be signed by
the current Administrator (Candice Kennon) and updated annually prior to submittal to FDOT for
concurrence per page 9 of the plan. If the updated and signed plan needs to be adopted by the
governing board the date of plan adoption will need to be updated in the Title VI Document
Activity Log on page 3 and on page 7 and a copy of the governing board meeting minutes will need
to be inserted in Appendix C.

2. Page 6 of the plan — Current and pending funding needs to be updated to reflect current funding.

3. Page 7 of the plan — The summary of compliance review needs to be updated. The date of the last
review indicates September 26, 2019, and the last triennial review was conducted December 3,
2025.

4. The Current System Description on page 24 needs to be reviewed and updated.

5. The Title VI plan and complaint form on the Agency’s website is not the most current plan. The

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

versions on the website show the previous Administrator as the Title VI Liaison and contact on
the complaint form.




Recommendations:

1. The Agency needs to update the plan, have it adopted by the board, and signed by the current
Administrator. Please provide the Department with a copy of the updated plan signed by the
current administrator, the date of plan adoption updated in the Title VI Document Activity Log on
page 3 and on page 7, and a copy of the governing board meeting minutes will be inserted in
Appendix C.

2. Please provide the Department a copy of the updated plan with the current and pending funding
updated on Page 6.

3. Please provide the Department with a updated copy of the plan with the summary of compliance
review revised to indicate the last triennial review was conducted December 3, 2025.

4. Please provide the Department with a copy of the updated plan with the Current System
Description updated to reflect the Agency's current system.

5. The copy of the Title VI plan and complaint form on the Agency’s website needs to be updated to
the most current version. Please provide the Department with a link to the updated plan and
complaint form on the Agency's website.

e. Report on the status of the findings and recommendations
Findings are being addressed in the latest update to the Title VI Plan.

f.  Current status of the compliance review
Updated Plan adopted on 03/09/2026 by SVTA Board of Directors

Annual Certifications and Assurances

In accordance with 49 CFR Section 21.7(a), every application for financial assistance from FTA must be
accompanied by an assurance that the applicant will carry out the program in compliance with Title VI
regulations. This requirement shall be fulfilled when the applicant/recipient submits its annual certifications
and assurances. Primary recipients will collect Title VI assurances from subrecipients prior to passing
through FTA funds.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will remain in compliance with this requirement by annual submission
of certifications and assurances as required by FDOT and/or other primary recipient.

Title VI Plan Adoption

The Plan was approved and adopted by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s Board of Directors during a
meeting held on March 9, 2026. A copy of the meeting minutes is included in Appendix C of this Plan.

Any additional text for Section 2 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Title VI Notice to the Public

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Ill, Paragraph 5: Title 49 CFR 21.9(d) requires recipients to provide information to
the public regarding the recipient’s obligations under DOT’s Title VI regulations and apprise members of the

public of the protections against discrimination afforded to them by Title VI.

Notice to the Public

Recipients must notify members of the public of their rights under Title VI and include the notice and where
it is posted in the Title VI Plan. The notice must include:

= A statement that the agency operates programs without regard to race, color, and national origin

= A description of the procedures members of the public should follow in order to request additional
information on the grantee’s nondiscrimination obligations

= A description of the procedure members of the public should follow in order to file a discrimination
complaint against the grantee

A sample of the notice is included in Appendix D of this Plan. The sample notice should be translated into
other languages, as necessary.

Notice Posting Locations

The Notice to Public will be posted at many locations to apprise the public of Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority’s obligations under Title VI and to inform them of the protections afforded them under Title VI. At
a minimum, the notice will be posted in public areas of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s office(s)
including the reception desk/lobby and meeting rooms, and on the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s
website at www.ridesvta.com. Additionally, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will post the notice at
stations, stops, and on transit vehicles.

Any additional text for Section 3 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority



http://www.ridesvta.com/

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Title VI Procedures and Compliance

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Ill, Paragraph 6: All recipients shall develop procedures for investigating and

tracking Title VI complaints filed aginst them and make their procedures for filing a complaint available to
member of the public.

Complaint Procedure

Any person who believes he or she has been discriminated against on the basis of race, color, or national
origin by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority may file a Title VI complaint by completing and submitting the
agency’s Title VI Complaint Form (refer to Appendix E). Suwannee Valley Transit Authority investigates
complaints received no more than 180 days after the alleged incident. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
will process complaints that are complete.

Once the complaint is received, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will review it to determine if our office
has jurisdiction. The complainant will receive an acknowledgement letter informing him/her whether the
complaint will be investigated by our office.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has ninety (90) days to investigate the complaint. If more information is
needed to resolve the case, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority may contact the complainant. The
complainant has ten (10) business days from the date of the letter to send requested information to the
investigator assigned to the case. If the investigator is not contacted by the complainant or does not receive
the additional information within ten (10) business days, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority can
administratively close the case. A case can also be administratively closed if the complainant no longer
wishes to pursue their case.

After the investigator reviews the complaint, she/he will issue one of two letters to the complainant: a closure
letter or a letter of finding (LOF). A closure letter summarizes the allegations and states that there was not
a Title VI violation and that the case will be closed. A LOF summarizes the allegations and the interviews
regarding the alleged incident, and explains whether any disciplinary action, additional training of the staff
member, or other action will occur. If the complainant wishes to appeal the decision, she/he has seven (7)
days to do so from the time he/she receives the closure letter or the LOF.

The complaint procedure will be made available to the public Suwannee Valley Transit Authority website
(www.ridesvta.com )

Complaint Form
A copy of the complaint form in English is provided in Appendix E and on Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
website.(www.ridesvta.com )

Record Retention and Reporting Policy

FTA requires that all direct and primary recipients document their compliance by submitting a Title VI Plan
to their FTA regional civil rights officer once every three (3) years. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
submit their Title VI Plan to FDOT for concurrence on an annual basis or any time a major change in the
Plan occurs.

Compliance records and all Title VI related documents will be retained for a minimum of three (3) years and
reported to the primary recipient annually.



http://www.ridesvta.com/
http://www.ridesvta.com/

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Subrecipient Assistance and Monitoring

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority does not have any subrecipients to provide monitoring and assistance.
As a Subrecipient to FDOT, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority utilizes the Subrecipient assistance and
monitoring provided by FDOT, as needed. In the future, if Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has
subrecipients, it will provide assistance and monitoring as required by FTA Circular 4702.1B.

Contractors and Subcontractors (Not Applicable)

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is responsible for ensuring that contractors are in compliance with Title
VI requirements. Contractors may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subcontractors.
Subcontractors also may not discriminate in the selection and retention of any subcontractors. Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority, contractors, and subcontractors may not discriminate in their employment practices
in connection with federally assisted projects. Contractors and subcontractors are not required to prepare
or submit a Title VI Plan. However, the following nondiscrimination clauses will be inserted into every
contract with contractors and subcontractors subject to Title VI regulations.

Nondiscrimination Clauses
During the performance of a contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor”) must agree to the following clauses:

1. Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation,
(hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made
a part of this Agreement.

2. Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed during the contract, shall
not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or family
status in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and
leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when
the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

3. Solicitations for Subcontractors, including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations made by the Contractor, either by competitive bidding or negotiation for work to be
performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment; each
potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the subcontractor’s
obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the basis of
race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, religion, or family status.

4. Information and Reports: The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the
Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records,
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Florida
Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration,
Federal Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration to be
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions. Where any
information required of a Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses
to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the Florida Department of
Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration, Federal
Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration as appropriate and
shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall impose contract
sanctions as appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the Contractor complies,
and/or
b. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through
6 in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt
by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action
with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, Florida
Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transit Administration,
Federal Aviation Administration, and/or the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration may direct
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Policy

As a part of the Public Transportation Grant Agreement (PTGA) with FDOT, Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority and its contractors and subcontractors agree to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises
as defined in 49 CFR Part 26, as amended, have the opportunity to participate in the performance of
contracts. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority and its contractor and subcontractors shall not discriminate
on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of any contract. The contractor shall
carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of FDOT -assisted
contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract,
which may result in the termination of the contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.

E-Verify

As a part of the PTGA with FDOT, vendors and contractors of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall
utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of
all new employees hired by the vendor or contractor while contracted with Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority. Additionally, vendors and contractors shall expressly require any subcontractors performing work
or providing services pursuant to work for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority shall likewise utilize the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new
employees hired by the subcontractor while working for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

Any additional text for Section 4 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Ill, Paragraph 7: In order to comply with the reporting requirements of 49 CFR
21.9(b), FTA requires all recipients to prepare and maintain a list of any of the following that allege

discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin: active investigations....; lawsuits, and complaints

naming the recipient.

In accordance with 49 CFR 21.9(b), Suwannee Valley Transit Authority must record and report any
investigations, complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations of discrimination. The records of these events
shall include the date the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint was filed; a summary of the allegations; the
status of the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint; and actions taken by Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
in response; and final findings related to the investigation, lawsuit, or complaint. The records for the previous
three (3) years shall be included in the Title VI Plan when it is submitted to [FDOT] and/or [other primary
recipient].

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has had no investigations, complaints, or lawsuits involving allegations
of discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin over the past three (3) years. A summary of
these incidents is recorded in Table 1.

Table 1 | Summary of Investigations, Lawsuits, and Complaints

Date (Month, Summary Status Action(s) Taken
Day, Year) (include basis of

complaint: race
color or origin)

Investigations
1.

2.

Lawsuits

1.

2.

Complaints

1.

2.

Any additional text for Section 5 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes




Public Participation Plan

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter I, Paragraph 4.a.4: Every Title VI Plan shall include the following information: A
public participation plan that includes an outreach plan to engage minority and limited English proficient
populations, as well as a summary of outreach efforts made since the last Title VI Plan submission. A recipient’s
targeted public participation plan of minority populations may be part of efforts that extend more broadly to
include constituencies that are traditionally underserved, such as people with disabilities, low-income

populations, and others.

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority was developed to ensure that
all members of the public, including minorities and Limited English Proficient (LEP) populations, are
encouraged to participate in the decision-making process for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. The PPP
is included as Appendix F to this Title VI Plan.

Current Outreach Efforts

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is required to submit a summary of public outreach efforts made over
the last three (3) years. The following is a list and short description of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
recent, current, and planned outreached activities.

DATE OUTREACH DESCRIPTION TYPE OF OUTREACH
01/28/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/20/2019 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/01/2019 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/13/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/12/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/14/2019 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/09/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/04/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/20/2019 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/25/2019 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/10/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/19/2020 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
03/12/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/07/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/23/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/29/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
06/17/2020 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/10/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/16/2020 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/16/2020 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/08/2021 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/17/2021 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/10/2021 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/19/2021 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/09/2021 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/15/2021 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/08/2021 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/17/2021 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
01/31/2022 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/16/2022 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




05/09/2022 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/18/2022 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/08/2022 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/21/2022 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/14/2022 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/16/2022 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
01/09/2022 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/13/2023 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/15/2023 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/10/2023 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
06/07/2023 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
07/10/2023 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/20/2023 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
10/16/2023 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/15/2023 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
12/04/2023 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
12/13/2023 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
01/08/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/12/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/21/2024 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
03/11/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/08/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/13/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
06/10/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
06/12/2024 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
07/08/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/21/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/09/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/04/2024 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
01/13/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/10/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
03/26/2025 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
04/14/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/12/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
05/21/2025 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
07/14/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/11/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
08/20/2025 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
09/08/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/03/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
11/19/2025 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
12/11/2025 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
01/12/2026 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
02/18/2026 Regional LCB Meeting Stakeholder Meeting
03/09/2026 SVTA Board Meeting Stakeholder Meeting

Any additional text for Section 6 must be inserted above this point for formatting/ page numbering purposes.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Language Assistance Plan

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Ill, Paragraph 9: Recipients shall take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful
access to benefits, services, information, and other important portions of their programs and activities for

individuals who are limited English proficient (LEP).

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates a transit system within Columbia, Hamilton, and Suwannee
Counties. The Language Assistance Plan (LAP) has been prepared to address Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority’s responsibilities as they relate to the needs of individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).
Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English are LEP. In Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority service area there are 2,912 residents or 2.4% who describe themselves as not
able to communicate in English very well (Source: US Census). Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is
federally mandated (Executive Order 13166) to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the
benefits, services, information, and other important portions of its programs and activities for individuals
who are LEP. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has utilized the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT)
LEP Guidance Handbook and performed a four-factor analysis to develop its LAP. The LAP is included in
this Title VI Plan as Appendix G.

Refer to the Language Data Tables--Copy and Paste applicable tables for your Agency service area in
Appendix G.

Any additional text for Section 7 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Transit Planning and Advisory Bodies

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter lll, Paragraph 10: Recipients that have transit-related, non-elected planning
boards, advisory councils or committees, or similar committees, the membership of which is selected by the
recipient, must provide a table depicting the racial breakdown of the membership of those committees, and a
description of efforts made to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority transit-related, advisory council consists of 4 members appointed by the
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Administrator.

Table 2 | Transit Planning and Advisory Boards

Body Caucasian Latino African Asian Native Other
American American American
Service Area 92,584 13,989 14,371 763 509 4,960
Population
Title VI 2 1 2
Committee

[Committee 2]

[Committee 3]

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will make efforts to encourage minority participation on the committee.

Any additional text for Section 8 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering
purposes.




Title VI Equity Analysis

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter Ill, Paragraph 4.a.8: If the recipient has constructed a facility, such as
vehicle storage, maintenance facility, operation center, etc., the recipient shall include a copy of the

Title VI equity analysis conducted during the planning stage with regard to the location of the facility.

Title 49 CFR, Appendix C, Section (3)(iv) requires that “the location of projects requiring land acquisition
and the displacement of persons from their residences and business may not be determined on the basis
of race, color, or national origin.” For purposes of this requirement, “facilities” does not include bus shelters,
as they are considered transit amenities. It also does not include transit stations, power substations, or any
other project evaluated by the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process. Facilities included in the
provision include, but are not limited to, storage facilities, maintenance facilities, operations centers, etc. In
order to comply with the regulations, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will ensure the following:

1. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will complete a Title VI equity analysis for any facility during the
planning stage with regard to where a project is located or sited to ensure the location is selected
without regard to race, color, or national origin. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will engage in
outreach to persons potentially impacted by the siting of the facility. The Title VI equity analysis
must compare the equity impacts of various siting alternatives, and the analysis must occur before
the selection of the preferred site.

2.  When evaluating locations of facilities, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will give attention to other
facilities with similar impacts in the area to determine if any cumulative adverse impacts might
result. Analysis should be done at the Census tract or block group level where appropriate to ensure
that proper perspective is given to localized impacts.

3. If Suwannee Valley Transit Authority determines that the location of the project will result in a
disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
may only locate the project in that location if there is a substantial legitimate justification for locating
the project there, and where there are no alternative locations that would have a less disparate
impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority must
demonstrate and document how both tests are met. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will
consider and analyze alternatives to determine whether those alternatives would have less of a
disparate impact on the basis of race, color, or national origin, and then implement the least
discriminatory alternative.

[Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has not recently constructed any facilities, nor does it currently have
any facilities in the planning stage. Therefore, Agency Name does not have any Title VI Equity Analysis

reports to submit with this Plan. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will utilize the demographic maps
included in Appendix | for future Title VI analysis.]

Any additional text for Section 9 must be inserted above this point for formatting/page numbering purposes.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




System-Wide Service Standards and Service Policies

FTA Circular 4702.1B, Chapter I, Paragraph 10: All fixed route transit providers shall set service standards and

policies for each specific fixed route mode of service they provide.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is not a fixed route service provider.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Appendices

Appendix A FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit Providers

Appendix B Current System Description

Appendix C Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting Minutes

Appendix D Title VI Sample Notice to Public

Appendix E Title VI Complaint Form

Appendix F  Public Participation Plan

Appendix G Language Assistance Plan

Appendix H Operating Area Language Data: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Service Area
Appendix | Demographic Maps

Appendix J Title VI Equity Analysis

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Appendix A FTA Circular 4702.1b Reporting Requirements for Transit
Providers

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Every three years, on a date determined by FTA, each recipient is required to submit the following
information to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) as part of their Title VI Program. Subrecipients
shall submit the information below to their primary recipient (the entity from whom the Subrecipient
receives funds directly), on a schedule to be determined by the primary recipient.

General Requirements

All recipients must submit:

a
a

aaQaa

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Title VI Notice to the Public, including a list of locations where the notice is posted

Title VI Complaint Procedures (i.e., instructions to the public regarding how to file a Title VI
discrimination complaint)

Title VI Complaint Form

List of transit-related Title VI investigations, complaints, and lawsuits

Public Participation Plan, including information about outreach methods to engage minority and
limited English proficient populations (LEP), as well as a summary of outreach efforts made
since the last Title VI Program submission

Language Assistance Plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited English
proficiency (LEP), based on the DOT LEP Guidance

A table depicting the membership of non-elected committees and councils, the membership of
which is selected by the recipient, broken down by race, and a description of the process the
agency uses to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees

Primary recipients shall include a description of how the agency monitors its subrecipients for
compliance with Title VI, and a schedule of Subrecipient Title VI Program submissions

A Title VI equity analysis if the recipient has constructed a facility, such as a vehicle storage
facility, maintenance facility, operation center, etc.

A copy of board meeting minutes, resolution, or other appropriate documentation showing the
board of directors or appropriate governing entity or official(s) responsible for policy decisions
reviewed and approved the Title VI Program. For state DOTSs, the appropriate governing entity
is the state’s Secretary of Transportation or equivalent. The approval must occur prior to
submission to FTA.

Additional information as specified in Sections IV, V, and VI, depending on whether the
recipient is a transit provider, a state, or a planning entity (see below)




Requirements of Transit Providers N/A

All Fixed Route Transit Providers must submit:

a
a

a

All requirements set out in Section Il (General Requirements)
Service standards

o Vehicle load for each mode

o Vehicle headway for each mode

o On time performance for each mode

o Service availability for each mode

Service policies

o Transit Amenities for each mode

o Vehicle Assignment for each mode

Transit Providers that operate 50 or more fixed route vehicles in peak service and are located in an
Urbanized Area (UZA) of 200,000 or more people must submit:

0
a
a

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Demographic and service profile maps and charts

Demographic ridership and travel patterns, collected by surveys

Results of their monitoring program and report, including evidence that the board or other
governing entity or official(s) considered, was aware of the results, and approved the analysis
A description of the public engagement process for setting the “major service change policy,”
disparate impact policy, and disproportionate burden policy

Results of service and/or fare equity analyses conducted since the last Title VI Program
submission, including evidence that the board or other governing entity or official(s)
considered, was aware of, and approved the results of the analysis




Appendix B Current System Description

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Current System Description

1. An overview of the organization including its mission, program goals, and objectives.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s current and long-term focus as a transportation provider is on

maintaining the best-coordinated transportation system possible for this community. Our goal is to
create a coordinated system with the objective of providing safe, reliable, timely, and efficient
transportation services to Columbia, Hamilton, and Suwannee County residents.

2. Organizational structure, type of operation, number of employees, service hours, staffing plan and
safety and security plan.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is an Independent Special District governing agency. Our agency is

made up of 21 full-time employees, 3 part-time employees, and 0 volunteers. Our Administrator is
responsible for all of the day-to-day operations of our organization and reports directly to our Governing
Board. Our Board is committed to this program and has, therefore, incorporated our service within the
tri-county’s Public Transportation Program. Transportation services are provided in accordance with
the Board’s approved Operations Manual/System Safety/Security Program and its Transportation
Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP). We will continue to operate at previous year (2025) service hours
averaging 49 total fleet service hours per day or approximately 15,417 annual service hours (assuming
312 operating days).

3. Indicate if your agency is a government authority or a private non-profit agency.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates as a for profit with a CTC agreement with the Commission

of Transportation Disadvantaged. We have an executed CTC agreement dated July 1, 2021-June 30,
2026.

4. Who is responsible for insurance, training and management, and administration of the agency’s
transportation programs?
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s Administrator is responsible for training and management of our

transportation program. All safety sensitive employees are required to complete FDOT approved safety
and security training courses as part of their new hire orientation. All new bus operators are also
required to complete 80 hours of on-the-road drivers training, which includes riding with a training driver,
behind-the-wheel training, and training on proper use of wheelchair lifts and securement devices. The
Administrator is responsible for annual renewal of all liability insurance for both FDOT and agency
owned vehicles, as well as vehicle registration renewal. It is the Administrator’'s responsibility to
administer all aspects of the transportation program and to control access and usage of all agency
vehicles.

5. Who provides vehicle maintenance and record keeping?
Maintenance on all agency vehicles is provided by in-house mechanics. Suwannee Valley Transit

Authority employs only ASE certified technicians with experience in working on commercial passenger
vehicles like the type our agency uses. All maintenance is performed using the Preventative
Maintenance Plan, which conforms to the state Vehicle Maintenance Guidelines set forth in the FDOT
Preventative Maintenance Guidelines document. All vehicle files and driver files are kept on-site at our
operations base located at 1907 Voyles Street, SW, Live Oak, Florida 32064 and are maintained by
the Maintenance & Safety Manager (vehicle files) and Driver Operations Manager (driver files). All
maintenance records are maintained and retained for a minimum of four (4) years.

6. Number of current transportation related employees.
Our transportation department has a total of 24 employees that include: 10 full-time drivers, 3 part-time

drivers, 1 administrator, and 10 support staff.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




7. Who will drive the vehicle, number of drivers, CDL certifications, etc.?

Only transportation employees that have completed all of the required safety and drivers training
requirements will be allowed to drive the agency vehicles.

8. A detailed description of service routes and ridership numbers.
Transportation services provided through our program are available to citizens of our service area. We

provide a wide range of trip purposes that include: medical, nutrition, shopping, social service, training,
employment, social and recreation. Currently, we use a variety of vehicles to provide passenger
services. Our fleet includes vans, modified vans, and buses. Twenty-three (23) of our vehicles are
equipped for wheelchair service. We prioritize grouping trips and multi-loading to the maximum extent
possible. We make 50 passenger trips per day on average and leverage our fleet resources so that all
vehicles are used in a responsible manner to provide full coverage and retire the vehicles at a consistent
pace and appropriate age and mileage.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Appendix C Title VI Plan Adoption Meeting Minutes

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Insert a copy of the Title VI adoption Board Meeting Minutes

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Appendix D Title VI Sample Notice to Public

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Notifying the Public of Rights Under Title VI

SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates its programs and services without regard to race,
color, and national origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. Any person who
believes she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI may
file a complaint with Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

For more information on Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s civil rights program, and the
procedures to file a complaint, contact 386-362-5332, email Candice.Kennon@ridesvta.com; or
visit our administrative office at 1907 Voyles Street, SW, Live Oak, Florida 32064. For more
information, visit www.ridesvta.com.

If information is needed in another language, contact 386-362-5332.

Notificacion al publico de los derechos en virtud del Titulo VI

SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority opera sus programas y servicios sin tener en cuenta la
raza, el color y el origen nacional de acuerdo con el Titulo VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles.
Cualquier persona que crea que ha sido agraviada por cualquier practica discriminatoria ilegal
bajo el Titulo VI puede presentar una queja ante Suwannee Valley Transit Authority.

Para obtener mas informacion sobre el programa de derechos civiles Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority’s y los procedimientos para presentar una queja, comuniquese con 386
362-5332; envie un correo electronico candice kennon@ridesvta.com; o visite nuestra
oficina administrativa en 1907 Voyles Street, SW Live Oak, FL 32064. Para obtener mas
informacion, visite www.ridesta.com.

Si necesita informacion en otro idioma, pongase en contacto con 386 362-5332

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority



mailto:Candice.Kennon@ridesvta.com
http://www.ridesvta.com/
mailto:candice%20kennon@ridesvta.com;
http://www.ridesta.com/

Appendix E Complaint Form

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Title VI Complaint Form

Date of Alleged Discrimination (Month, Day, Year):

of this form.

Section I:

Name:

Address:

Telephone (Home): Telephone (Work):

Electronic Mail Address:

Accessible Format Large Print Audio Tape
Requirements? TDD Other

Section I

Are you filing this complaint on your own behalf? Yes* No
*If you answered "yes" to this question, go to Section IlI.

If not, please supply the name and relationship of the person for whom you

are complaining:

Please explain why you have filed for a third party:

Please confirm that you have obtained the permission of the aggrieved Yes No
party if you are filing on behalf of a third party.

Section lll:

| believe the discrimination | experienced was based on (check all that apply):

[1Race [] Color [ 1 National Origin [1Age

[ ] Disability [ 1 Family or Religious Status [ 1 Other (explain)

Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were discriminated against. Describe all
persons who were involved. Include the name and contact information of the person(s) who discriminated against you
(if known) as well as names and contact information of any witnesses. If more space is needed, please use the back

Section IV

Have you previously filed a Title VI complaint with this agency?

Yes

No

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Section V

Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any Federal or State court?
[1Yes [1No

If yes, check all that apply:

[ 1 Federal Agency:

[ 1 Federal Court [ ] State Agency

[] State Court [ ] Local Agency

Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed.

Name:

Title:

Agency:

Address:

Telephone:

Section VI

Name of agency complaint is against:

Contact person:

Title:

Telephone number:

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your complaint.

Signature and date required below

Signature Date

Please submit this form in person at the address below, or mail this form to:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Candice T. Kennon, Administrator
Title VI Liaison

1907 Voyles Street, SW

Live Oak, Florida 32064

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Formulario de reclamacion del Titulo VI (Spanish)

Seccion I:

Nombre:

Direccion:

Teléfono (Inicio): Teléfono (Trabajo):

Direccion de correo electronico:

¢ Requisitos de formato Letra grande Cinta de audio

accesible? TDD Otro

Seccion II:

¢ Esta presentando esta queja en su propio nombre? Si* No

*Si respondié "si" a esta pregunta, vaya a la Seccion .

De lo contrario, proporcione el nombre y la relacion de la persona
por la que se queja:

Por favor, explique por qué ha solicitado a un tercero:

Confirme que ha obtenido el permiso de la parte agraviada si esta Si No
presentando una solicitud en nombre de un tercero.

Seccion llI:

Creo que la discriminacién que experimenté se basoé en (verifique todo lo que se aplica):
[1Raza[ ] Color| ] Origen nacional [ ] Edad

[ 1 Discapacidad [ ] Estado familiar o religioso [ ] Otro (explicar)

Fecha de la presunta discriminacion (mes, dia, afio):

Explique lo méas claramente posible lo que sucedié y por qué cree que fue discriminado. Describa a todas
las personas que estuvieron involucradas. Incluya el nombre y la informacion de contacto de la(s)
persona(s) que lo discriminé (si se conoce), asi como los nombres y la informacién de contacto de
cualquier testigo. Si se necesita mas espacio, utilice la parte posterior de este formulario.

Seccion IV

¢, Ha presentado previamente una queja del Titulo VI ante esta Si No
agencia?

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Secciéon V

¢ Ha presentado esta queja ante alguna otra agencia federal, estatal o local, o ante algun tribunal federal
o estatal?

[1Si[]1No
En caso afirmativo, marque todo lo que corresponda:

[ 1 Agencia Federal:

[ ] Tribunal Federal [ ] Agencia Estatal

[] Tribunal Estatal [ ] Agencia Local

Proporcione informacién sobre una persona de contacto en la agencia / tribunal donde se presenté la
queja.

Nombre:

Titulo:

Agencia:

Direccion:

Teléfono:

Seccion VI

El nombre de la queja de la agencia es contra:

Persona de contacto:

Titulo:

Numero de teléfono:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Puede adjuntar cualquier material escrito u otra informacion que considere relevante para su queja.

Firma y fecha requeridas a continuacion

Firma Fecha

Envie este formulario en persona a la direcciéon que aparece a continuacion, o envielo por correo a:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
Candice T. Kennon, Administrator
Title VI Liaison

1907 Voyles Street, SW

Live Oak, Florida 32064




Appendix F Public Participation Plan

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




The Public Participation Plan (PPP) is an open-ended plan which should be tailored to the needs and
capabilities of your agency. The following is a rough template for a possible PPP for a typical subrecipient
transit agency. The plan should be modified to match the public participation needs of your agency with
capabilities of your agency. FTA Circular 4702.1B provides little concrete guidance to the contents of the
PPP. The following are instructions from FTA Circular 4702.1B with regards to the PPP:

“Recipients have wide latitude to determine how, when, and how often specific public participation activities
should take place, and which specific measures are most appropriate. Recipients should make these
determinations based on a demographic analysis of the population(s) affected, the type of plan, program
and/or service under consideration, and the resources available.”

“Some of those effective practices include:

a. Scheduling meeting at times and locations that are convenient and accessible for minority and LEP
communities.

b. Employing different meeting sizes and formats.

c. Coordinating with community and faith-based organizations, educational institutions, and other
organizations to implement public engagement strategies that reach out specifically to members of
affected minority and/or LEP communities.

d. Considering radio, television, or newspaper ads on stations and in publications that serve LEP
populations. Outreach to LEP populations could also include audio programming available on
podcasts.

e. Providing opportunities for public participation through means other than written communication,
such as personal interviews or use of audio or video recording devices to capture oral
communication. *

With these instructions in mind, please add or remove items from the template as you see fit. The
majority of the plan is shown in green text to indicate the flexibility in the plan.

Additionally, the new Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) does not require any direct changes
to Title VI, it does offer opportunities for agencies to enhance their equity initiatives, such as enhanced
community engagement and outreach to hard-to-reach populations. The following list of strategies can
be considered to aid agencies in enhanced outreach:

e Partnering with churches and other community organizations that serve particular populations,
including food banks, homeless shelters, and immigrant support organizations, is helpful for
connecting with hard-to-reach communities. These organizations are trusted by community
members and, particularly for immigrants, speak their languages.

e Advertising on Spanish-language radio and in Spanish-language newspapers were found to be
cost-effective strategies for reaching the Hispanic community in several states.

e Messaging that directs individuals to assistance resources, includes personal testimonials, and
emphasizes availability and benefits of service.

e Offering outreach and enrollment assistance at large community events, such as fairs and
sporting events, provides opportunities to efficiently reach large numbers of people.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

Introduction

The Public Participation Plan (PPP) for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority was developed to ensure that
all members of the public, including minorities and Limited English Proficient (LEP) populations, are
encouraged to participate in the decision-making process for Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. Policy
and service delivery decisions need to take into consideration community sentiment and public opinion
based upon well-executed outreach efforts. The public outreach strategies described in the PPP are
designed to provide the public with effective access to information about Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
services and to provide a variety of efficient and convenient methods for receiving and considering public
comment prior to implementing changes to services. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority also recognizes
the importance of many types of stakeholders in the decision-making process, including other units of
government, metropolitan area agencies, community-based organizations, major employers, passengers,
and the general public, including low-income, minority, LEP, and other traditionally underserved
communities.

Public Participation Goals

The main goal of the PPP is to offer meaningful opportunities for all interested segments of the public,
including, but not limited to, low-income, minority and LEP groups, to comment, about Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority and its operations. The goals for this PPP include:

* Inclusion and Diversity: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will proactively reach out and
engage low-income, minority, and LEP populations for the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
service area so these groups will have an opportunity to participate.

= Accessibility: All legal requirements for accessibility will be met. Efforts will be made to
enhance the accessibility of the public’s participation — physically, geographically, temporally,
linguistically, and culturally.

= Clarity and Relevance: Issues will be framed in public meetings in such a way that the
significance and potential effect of proposed decisions is understood by participants. Proposed
adjustments to fares or services will be described in language that is clear and easy to
understand.

= Responsive: Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will strive to respond to and incorporate, when
possible, appropriate public comments into transportation decisions.

= Tailored: Public participation methods will be tailored to match local and cultural preferences
as much as possible.

= Flexible: The public participation process will accommodate participation in a variety of ways
and will be adjusted over time as needed.

Public Participation Methods

The methods of public participation included in this PPP were developed based upon best practices in
conjunction with the needs and capabilities of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority. Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority intends to achieve meaningful public participation by a variety of methods with respect to service
and any changes to service.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will conduct community meetings and listening sessions as appropriate
with passengers, employers, community based organizations, and advisory committees to gather public
input and distribute information about service quality, proposed changes or new service options.




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

The public will be invited to provide feedback on the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority website
(www.ridesvta.com) and all feedback on the site will be recorded and passed on to Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority management. The public will also be able to call the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority office at
386-362-8704 during its hours of operation. Feedback collected over the phone will be recorded and passed
on to Suwannee Valley Transit Authority management. Formal customer surveys to measure performance,
and listening sessions to solicit input, will be conducted periodically. The comments recorded as a part of
these participation methods will be responded to as appropriate.

Meeting formats will be tailored to help achieve specific public participation goals that vary by project or the
nature of the proposed adjustment of service. Some meetings will be designed to share information and
answer questions. Some will be designed to engage the public in providing input, establishing priorities,
and helping to achieve consensus on a specific recommendation. Others will be conducted to solicit and
consider public comments before implementing proposed adjustments to services. In each case, an agenda
for the meetings will be created that works to achieve the stated goals, is relevant to the subject, and not
overwhelming for the public.

For all public meetings, the venue will be a facility that is accessible for persons with disabilities and,
preferably, is served by public transit. If a series of meetings are scheduled on a topic, different meeting
locations may be used, since no one location is usually convenient to all participants.

For community meetings and other important information, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will use a
variety of means to make riders and citizens aware, including some or all of the following methods:

= In-vehicle advertisement

= Posters or flyers in transit center

= Posting information on website

= Press releases and briefings to media outlets

= Multilingual flyer distribution to community based organizations, particularly those that target LEP
population

= Flyers and information distribution through various libraries and other civic locations that currently
help distribute timetables and other information

= Communications to relevant elected officials

= Other methods required by local or state laws or agreements

All information and materials communicating proposed and actual service adjustments will be provided in
English and any other language that meets the “safe harbor” criteria.

LCB Meetings

The Norht Central Florida Planning Council conducts the LCB meetings quarterly.



http://www.ridesvta.com/

Appendix G Language Assistance Plan

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




l. Introduction

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority operates a transit system within Columbia, Hamilton, and Suwannee
Counties. The Language Assistance Plan (LAP) has been prepared to address Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority’s responsibilities as they relate to the needs of individuals with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).
Individuals, who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English are LEP. In Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority service area there are residents or 3.7% who describe themselves as not able to
communicate in English “very well” (Source: US Census). Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is federally
mandated (Executive Order 13166) to take responsible steps to ensure meaningful access to the benefits,
services, information and other important portions of its programs and activities for individuals who are LEP.
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has utilized the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) LEP
Guidance Handbook and performed a four-factor analysis to develop its LAP.

w ox-25% [ 7% -10% Title VINondiscrimination Program

FDOT 26%-5% [ > 0% Columbia County 0% -2.5% I 7% -10% Title VI/Nondiscrimination Program
P [ LT - Percentage of L Proficiency FDOT 26%-5% [ >10% Suwannee County
ToOT DareiTwe I [ 51%-7.9%  soucsuscemumacs2  Percentage of Households with Limited English Proficiency

TOOT DavEt Twe

white o,
springs,” S 7
o

<
7y
b

”-25% 2 A Title VI/Nondiscrimination Program
FDOT\ PSR — T 015 45 Hamilton County
i A% 1% St Conmaca st s Percentage of Households with Limited English Proficiency




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

The U.S. Department of Transportation Handbook, titled “Implementing the Department of Transportation’s
Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons: A
Handbook for Public Transportation Providers, (April 13, 2007)“ (hereinafter “Handbook”), states that Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., and its implementing regulations provide that
no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program
or activity that receives Federal financial assistance (Handbook, page 5). The Handbook further adds that
Title VI prohibits conduct that has a disproportionate effect on LEP persons because such conduct
constitutes national origin discrimination (Handbook, page 5).

Executive Order 13166 of August 16, 2000, states that recipients of Federal financial assistance must take
reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by LEP persons (Handbook,
page 6). Additionally, recipients should use the DOT LEP Guidance to determine how best to comply with
statutory and regulatory obligations to provide meaningful access to the benefits, services, information and
other important portions of their programs and activities for individuals who are LEP (Handbook, page 6).
These provisions are included in FTA Circular 4702.1B in Paragraph 9 of Section Il (pages IlI-6 to 111-9).

For many LEP individuals, public transit is the principal transportation mode available. It is important for
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority be able to communicate effectively with all of its riders. When Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority is able to communicate effectively with all of its riders, the service provided is safer,
more reliable, convenient, and accessible for all within its service area. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
is committed to taking reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access for LEP individuals to this agency’s
services in accordance with Title VI.

This plan will demonstrate the efforts that Suwannee Valley Transit Authority undertakes to make its service
accessible to all persons without regard to their ability to communicate in English. The plan addresses how
services will be provided through general guidelines and procedures including the following:

= |dentification: Identifying LEP populations in service areas

= Notification: Providing notice to LEP individuals about their right to language services
= Interpretation: Offering timely interpretation to LEP individuals upon request

= Translation: Providing timely translation of important documents

= Staffing: Identifying Suwannee Valley Transit Authority staff to assist LEP customers

= Training: Providing training on LAP to responsible employees

Il. Four Factor Analysis

The analysis provided in this report has been developed to identify LEP population that may use Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority services and identify needs for language assistance. This analysis is based on the
“Four Factor Analysis” presented in the Implementing the Department of Transportation’s Policy Guidance
Concerning Recipients’ Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons, dated April 13, 2007,
which considers the following factors:

1. The number and proportion of LEP persons in the service area who may be served or are likely to
encounter a Suwannee Valley Transit Authority program, activity or service.

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Suwannee Valley Transit Authority
programs, activities or services.




3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by Suwannee Valley
Transit Authority to the LEP population.

4. The resources available to Suwannee Valley Transit Authority and overall costs to provide LEP
assistance:

a. Factor 1: The Number and Proportion of LEP Persons Serviced or Encountered in the
Eligible Service Population

Of the 122,660 residents in the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area 2,912 residents
describe themselves as speaking English less than “very well.” People of Hispanic descent are
the primary LEP persons likely to utilize Suwannee Valley Transit Authority services. For the
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area, the American Community Survey of the U.S.
Census Bureau shows that among the area’s population 5.8% speak English “very well.” For
groups who speak English “less than very well,” 82% speak Spanish and 8% speak Indo-
European Language.

Appendix H contains a table which lists the languages spoken at home by the ability to
speak English for the population within the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area.

b. Factor 2: The Frequency with which LEP Individuals Come into Contact with Your
Programs, Activities, and Services

The Federal guidance for this factor recommends that agencies should assess the frequency
with which they have contact with LEP individuals from different language groups. The more
frequent the contact with a particular LEP language group, the more likely enhanced services
will be needed.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has assessed the frequency with which LEP individuals
come in contact with the transit system. The methods utilized for this assessment include
analysis of Census data, examining phone inquiries, requests for translated documents, and
staff survey. As discussed above, Census data indicates that there is a lack of prominenet LEP
groups. Phone inquiries and staff survey feedback indicated that Suwannee Valley Transit
Authority dispatchers and drivers interact infrequently with LEP persons. The majority of these
interactions have occurred with LEP persons who mainly spoke Spanish. Over the past 3 years,
Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has had 0 requests for translated documents.

c. Factor 3: The Nature and Importance of the Program, Activity, or Service Provided by
the Recipient to People’s Lives

Public transportation and regional transportation planning is vital to many people’s lives.
According to the Department of Transportation’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s
Responsibilites to LEP Persons, providing public transportation access to LEP persons is
crucial. A LEP person’s inability to utilize public transportation effectively, may adversely affect
his or her ability to access health care, education, or employment.

d. Factor 4: The Resources Available to the Recipient and Costs

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Ill. Language Assistance Plan

In developing a Language Assistance Plan, FTA guidance recommends the analysis of the following five
elements:

Identifying LEP individuals who need language assistance
Providing language assistance measures

Training staff

Providing notice to LEP persons

Monitoring and updating the plan

a0~

The five elements are addressed below.

a. Element 1: Identifying LEP Individuals Who Need Language Assistance

Federal guidance provides that there should be an assessment of the number or proportion of
LEP individuals eligible to be serviced or encountered and the frequency of encounters
pursuant to the first two factors in the four-factor analysis.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has identified the number and proportion of LEP individuals
within its service area using United States Census data (see Appendix H). As presented
earlier, 91% of the service area population speaks English only. The largest non-English
spoken language in the service area is Spanish (82%). Of those who primary spoken language
is Spanish, approximately 82% identify themselves as speaking less than “very well.” Those
residents whose primary language is not English or Spanish and who identify themselves as
speaking English less than “very well” account for 8% of the service area population.

b. Element 2: Lanquage Assistance Measures

Federal Guidance suggests that an effective LAP should include information about the ways in
which language assistance will be provided. This refers to listing the different language services
an agency provides and how staff can access this information.

For this task Federal Guidance recommends that transit agencies consider developing
strategies that train staff as to how to effectively deal with LEP individuals when they either call
agency centers or otherwise interact with the agency.

c. Element 3: Training Staff

Federal guidance states staff members of an agency should know their obligations to provide
meaningful access to information and services for LEP persons and that all employees in public
contact positions should be properly trained.

Suggestions for implementing Element 3 of the Language Assistance Plan, involve: (1)
identifying agency staff likely to come into contact with LEP individuals; (2) identifying existing
staff training opportunities; (3) providing regular re-training for staff dealing with LEP individual
needs; and (4) designing and implementing LEP training for agency staff.

In the case of Suwannee Valley Transit Authority, the most important staff training is for
Customer Service Representatives and transit drivers.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

d. Element 4: Providing Note to LEP Persons

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority will make Title VI information available in English and
Spanish on the Agency’s website. Key documents are written in English and Spanish. Notices
are also posted in Suwannee Valley Transit Authority office lobby, and on buses. Additionally,
when staff prepares a document or schedules a meeting, for which the target audience is
expected to include LEP individuals, then documents, meeting notices, flyers, and agendas will
be printed in an alternative language based on the known LEP population.

e. Element 5: Monitoring and Updating the Plan

The plan will be reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis. Updates will consider the following:

The number of documented LEP person contacts encountered annually

How the needs of LEP persons have been addressed

Determination of the current LEP population in the service area

Determination as to whether the need for translation services has changed
Determine whether Suwannee Valley Transit Authority’s financial resources are sufficient
to fund language assistance resources needed

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority understands the value that its service plays in the lives of
individuals who rely on this service, and the importance of any measures undertaken to make
the use of system easier. Suwannee Valley Transit Authority is open to suggestions from all
sources, including customers, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority staff, other transportation
agencies with similar experiences with LEP communities, and the general public, regarding
additional methods to improve their accessibility to LEP communities.

IV. Safe Harbor Provision

DOT has adopted the Department of Justice’s Safe Harbor Provision, which outlines circumstances that
can provide a “safe harbor” for recipients regarding translation of written materials for LEP population. The
Safe Harbor Provision stipulates that, if a recipient provides written translation of vital documents for each
eligible LEP language group that constitutes five percent (5%) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less, of the
total population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be affected or encountered, then such action
will be considered strong evidence of compliance with the recipient’'s written translation obligations.
Translation of non-vital documents, if needed, can be provided orally. If there are fewer than 50 persons in
a language group that reaches the five percent (5%) trigger, the recipient is not required to translate vital
written materials but should provide written notice in the primary language of the LEP language group of
the right to receive competent oral interpretation of those written materials, free of cost.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority service area does not have LEP populations which qualify for the Safe
Harbor Provision. [As shown in Appendix H, Suwannee Valley Transit Authority does not have LEP groups
which speak English less than “very well” which exceed either 5.0% or 1,000 person.] or [As shown in
Appendix H, XXXXX speakers qualify for the Safe Harbor Provision as the number of person which speak
English less than “very well” is counted as XX. X% and X,XXX persons.]

Using the Langauge data tables provided for your service area, review the total number and percentage for
the Speak English less than “Very Well” category for each language. Any language which exceeds 1,000
people or 5% of the service area population, must be listed above as qualifying for the Safe Harbor
Provision.




Appendix H Operating Area Language Data:

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority Service Area

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Limited English Proficiency Table 2020 Census

Columbia County,
FL

Hamilton County,
FL

Suwannee County,
FL

Label Estimate Estimate Estimate
Total: 66,680 13,778 42,205
Native: 64,101 13,116 40,066
Speak only English 61,146 12,146 38,006
Speak Spanish: 2,203 676 1,410
Speak English "very well" |1,891 547 1,316
Speak English "well" 201 114 75
Speak English "not well" |60 15 19
Speak English "not at all" |51 0 0
Speak other Indo-European
languages: 621 200 617
Speak English "very well" (597 168 593
Speak English "well" 24 0 24
Speak English "not well" |0 32 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 0 0
Speak Asian and Pacific Island
languages: 78 19 23
Speak English "very well" |51 19 23
Speak English "well" 27 0 0
Speak English "not well" |0 0 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 0 0
Speak other languages: 53 75 10
Speak English "very well" |53 75 10
Speak English "well" 0 0 0
Speak English "not well" |0 0 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 0 0
Foreign born: 2,579 662 2,139
Speak only English 797 77 448
Speak Spanish: 1,059 306 1,492
Speak English "very well" (494 19 493
Speak English "well" 240 116 282
Speak English "not well" {271 101 444
Speak English "not at all" (54 70 273
Speak other Indo-European
languages: 346 252 66
Speak English "very well" (271 180 44

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Speak English "well" 38 22 22
Speak English "not well" |37 50 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 0 0
Speak Asian and Pacific Island
languages: 363 27 133
Speak English "very well" [169 0 118
Speak English "well" 184 22 15
Speak English "not well" |10 0 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 5 0
Speak other languages: 14 0 0
Speak English "very well" |0 0 0
Speak English "well" 14 0 0
Speak English "not well" |0 0 0
Speak English "not at all" |0 0 0

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Appendix | Demographic Maps

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Include the demographic maps applicable to your Agency’s service area- 8 maps per county in your
service area.

Rst 4 ®uE + Ry 4 AuE 4

GEORGIA

Columbia
County

Existing Land Use Map 2010

COUNTY

-
lns$t Map £ o
+ . -
-
=
<
T
— -
' o
[o]
= N\ c
3 . z
” o
T 2 L —
= z <
- e ; =
] (=]
(&}
2 o P
w
w
- : .
2 = ¢ -
: <!
Py
ARy
o b
: >
FEE iy
4
+ + .
b
w 5
R 5%
wims
151080 15 3
EXISTING LAND USE MAP CLASSIFICATIONS
[l Corsermsce
[ Agtconre - Fame 0/
[ Aocamn - Row Cpfumne <
[ s ians (o]
[ ecwwsen
R e
B i
] Pestsertal - Low (2204 por acon
] mesttarmtal - Woceeste (> 2 da par acowg Bt {2421 2ar s
] mesisarstl - Mactim (> € 2.0 3ar acowg bez (284 par werw)
5] Pestderstal - Mgk (>0 2a. par acw) 32 (220 24 Jar acw)
B commacia 4-) +
| EEEE * Y‘V
OTHER MAP FEATURES
] Cowty Sesndary Lre
[ mcomonnes A
] e -
— Srorimean P
v Palosd
e same =e b

MeL

MiL

w4

weL

L1HY

L

LTTY

"L

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




+ ‘

TN
=N

NH Y ;j‘;'t
/

County  §1 i‘

Hamilton‘ 4 x ‘ S

Official Zoning Atlas - Qﬁ jaan

LA A

i him

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

i




Title VI Plan

Tne Plan Mg

Existing Lasd 1

=
=
o
=]
<
)

Suwannee Valley Trans




Appendix J Title VI Equity Analysis

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority has not performed Title VI Equity Analysis.

Suwannee Valley Transit Authority




FDOT

Geanelly Reveron

ISD Modal Development Manager

Florida Department of Transportation, District Two
Phone: (904) 360-5684

Email: Geanelly.Reveron@dot.state.fl.us




SUWANNEE VALLEY TRANSIT AUTHORITY
1907 Voyles Street, SW
Live Oak, Florida 32064

Title VI Compliance Plan Version 3
RESOLUTION #: 2026-01

THIS RESOLUTION of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority (SVTA) acknowledges that SVTA
is a recipient of Federal, State, and local government funding primarily used for transportation of
the public including the transportation disadvantaged. Receipt of Federal and State funds require
compliance with the regulatory requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 protects any person in the United States from being
excluded from participation, denied the benefit of, or being otherwise subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance as a subrecipient from the
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD:

1. This Resolution applies to the approval of the SVTA Title VI Compliance Plan;

2. WHEREAS, the Title VI Committee as selected by the Administrator, Candice
Kennon, has complied the SVTA Title VI Compliance Plan and is now being
submitted to the SVTA Board for approval and adoption on the nineth day of March
2026;

3. Be it resolved that this Title VI Plan is now Approved and Adopted by the Suwannee
Valley Transit Authority Board;

4. The Administrator, Candice Kennon and the Title VI Advisory Committee are hereby
designated and authorized on behalf of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority to
make changes to the Title VI Plan as needed.

The foregoing Resolution was DULY PASSED, ADOPTED AND became EFFECTIVE at a
duly called and convened public meeting of the Suwannee Valley Transit Authority held on
the 9" day of March 2026.

Don Hale, Chairperson
ATTEST:
Eric Musgrove, Secretary




Suwannee Valley Transit A
FY 2025-26 Budget

uthority

Revenue 2025-2026 Budget 1st Quarter Total :2nd Quarter Total :FYTD

4111 Passenger-Paid Fares $ 49,142.56 | $ 8,448.57 i $ 2,830.15 : $ (37,863.84)
4151 Maintenance Services $ 1,152.73  $ - % - 8 (1,152.73)
4152 Donations $ 7,864.50 i $ 100.00 : $ - $ (7,764.50)
4159 Interest Income $ 19,162.94 | $ 2,350.23 ; $ 027 :$ (16,812.44)
4160.1 CDC+ $ 19,846.09 ;| $ 2,407.04 : $ 933.58 : $ (16,505.47)
4160.2 Medwaiver $ 289,626.81 | $ 37,754.22 | $ 14,061.43 : $ (237,811.16)
4160.3 Ryan White $ 262.50 | $ 39.00 $ (223.50)
4160.4 SREC $ 24,999.96 | $ 6,249.99 | $ 2,083.33 : $ (16,666.64)
4300 Local Government Funds $ 114,458.40 : $ 28,285.65 : $ 39,126.60 : $ (47,046.15)
4400.1 Trip & Equipment $ 730,176.00 | $ 127,682.82 | $ - $ (602,493.18)
4630 Sales & Disposals of Assets $ 15,000.00 | $ - $ - $ (15,000.00)
5311 (G3C12)24-25 $ 604,979.00 : $ - $ - $ (604,979.00)
5311 (G3C13) 24-25 $ 124,932.00 : $ - $ - $ (124,932.00)
5311 (G3C14) 24-25 $ 389,343.00 | $ - $ - $ (389,343.00)
Disability Determinations $ 73791 $ - $ - $ (73.79)
Vocational Rehab $ - % - 3 - % -
Total Revenue $ 4,429,789.29 : $ 213,317.52 : $ 59,035.36 : $ (4,157,436.41)




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

FY 2025-26 Budget

Expenses 2025-2026 Budget 1st Quarter Total :2nd Quarter Total :FYTD

5011.1 Operations Salary & Wages $ 806,174.16 | $ 142,274.35 i $ 101,242.23 | $ (562,657.58)
5011.2 Maintenance Salary & Wages $ 153,487.13 | $ 34,389.98 : $ 29,618.09 : $ (89,479.06)
5011.4 General Admin-Salary & Wages $ 294,312.72 i $ 47,936.79 : $ 42,219.31 | $  (204,156.62)
5015 Fringe Benefits

5015.12 Federal Taxes $ 14,700.00 ;| $ 101.38 ; $ 841.48 : $ (13,757.14)
5015.13 Medicare Taxes $ 18,182.63 | $ 3,159.82 i $ 2,429.44 ' $ (12,593.37)
5015.14 Social Security $ 77,746.39 i $ 13,511.00 ;| $ 10,387.88 : $ (53,847.51)
5015.21 Medical-Health Expenses $ 303,774.00 | $ 20,410.62 | $ 15,622.24 : $ (267,741.14)
5015.22 Dental & Vision-Health Expenses (Employee Paid) $ - $ 182.84 : $ 390.58 : $ 573.42

5015.23 TransAmerica-Health Expenses (Employee Paid) $ - $ 012:$ (127.00): $ (126.88)
5015.244 Aflac - Health Expense $ 10,461.12 | $ 3,025.42 | $ 1,910.84 : $ (5,524.86)
5015.24 Aflac - Health Expense (Employee Paid) $ - $ 508.85 | $ (947.81): $ (438.96)
5015.25 Liberty National (Employee Paid) $ - $ 31450 : $ (1,575.59): $ (1,261.09)
5015.33 Retirement Costs $ 219,030.88 | $ 33,745.05 | $ 16,243.81: $ (169,042.02)
5015.3 Retirement Costs (Employee Paid) $ - $ 062:$ (1,981.59): $ (1,980.97)
5090.46 Fines & Penalties $ 174 : $ - $ 1.74

5015.41 Uniforms (Operations) $ 4,500.00 : $ - $ 417.00 | $ (4,083.00)
5015.42 Uniforms (Maintenance) $ 3,650.64 : $ 813.69 | $ 575.24 : $ (2,261.71)
5020 Services

5020.10 Pest Control $ 592.70 : $ 599.76 | $ - $ 7.06

5020.11 Custodial Services $ 7,434.00 | $ 1,755.00 : $ - 8 (5,679.00)
5020.12 Shredding Services $ 830.76 | $ 24753 | $ 8491 : $ (498.32)
5020.13 Generator Services (Maint.) $ 865.20 | $ 314.25 | $ - $ (550.95)
5020.15 Fire Extinguisher Services $ 968.10 ;| $ 1,271.00 : $ - $ 302.90

5020.17 Vehicle Wrap & Paint $ 26,320.00 | $ 2,217.60 | $ 3,384.00 : $ (20,718.40)




Suwannee Valley Transit A
FY 2025-26 Budget

uthority

Expenses 2025-2026 Budget 1st Quarter Total :2nd Quarter Total :FYTD

5020.1 Drug & Alcohol Screenings $ 1,879.20 | $ 140.00 : $ 70.00 : $ (1,669.20)
5020.2 Background Screenings $ 500.00 : $ 68.00 | $ 158.00 : $ (274.00)
5020.3 Medical Examination $ 1,210.00 ;| $ 220.00 : $ 220.00 : $ (770.00)
5020.4 Legal Services $ 3,764.25 | $ 725.00 : $ - $ (3,039.25)
5020.5 Board Secretary $ 1,925.00 | $ 600.00 ;| $ 300.00 : $ (1,025.00)
5020.9 Finance & Accounting Services $ 32,700.00 : $ - $ - $ (32,700.00)
5020.6 Information Technology $ 29,166.01 : $ 8,511.00 : $ 3,947.22 ' $ (16,707.79)
5020.7 Web Services $ 1,800.00 | $ - % - 3 (1,800.00)
5020.91 Payroll Services $ 15,279.41 | $ 2,318.38 : $ 1,019.82 : $ (11,941.21)
5030 Materials and Supplies

5031 Fuel & Lubricants $ 191,860.85 : $ 29,160.38 | $ 23211 : $ (162,468.36)
5032.1Tires and Tubes $ 8,993.52 | $ 724.09 : $ 719.30: $ (7,550.13)
50392hb2 Shop Supplies $ 6,294.25 1 $ 168.64 ; $ 122.07 : $ (6,003.54)
5039.2b Vehicle Maint & Repair $ 1,170.52 1 $ 200.89 i $ 113.12 | $ (856.51)
50392b1 Parts $ 47,269.36 | $ 4,098.61: $ 2,006.70 : $ (41,164.05)
5039.3 Facility Maintenance $ 10,500.00 : $ - $ 463.48 ' $ (10,036.52)
50393a Maint of Vehicle Equipment $ 420.00 ;| $ 280.00 : $ - $ (140.00)
5039.3e Facility Materials & Supplies $ 2,523.59 | $ 10792 : $ 4598 : $§ (2,369.69)
50393e1 Janitorial Supplies $ 321.30 | $ - $ 287.50 : $ (33.80)
5039.4F Office Supplies $ 15,750.00 : $ 1,413.35 | $ 1,015.20 : $ (13,321.45)
50394F1 Postage $ 1,807.32 : $ 143.70 ; $ 39.88 : $ (1,623.74)
5039.5 Information Technology Material $ 335.33: % - $ - $ (335.33)




Suwannee Valley Transit Authority

FY 2025-26 Budget

Expenses 2025-2026 Budget 1st Quarter Total :2nd Quarter Total :FYTD

5040 Utilities

5040.21 Propane & Gas for Bldg $ 882.00 : $ - 3 - 8 (882.00)
5040.22 Water, Sewer, & Garbage $ 6,218.88 | $ 1,058.36 | $ 339.22 ' $ (4,821.30)
5040.23 Telephone $ 19,804.79 | $ 2,466.80 ; $ 831.00: $ (16,506.99)
5040.26 Internet $ 12,814.77 i $ 2,276.10 ; $ 1,552.40 : $ (8,986.27)
5040.27 Cell Phones & Tablets $ 15,000.00 | $ 2,749.88 | $ 1,873.13 : $ (10,376.99)
5040.2 Electricity $ 14,749.35 | $ 2,143.07 i $ 1,424.12 : $ (11,182.16)
5050 Casualty and Liability Costs $ 118,650.00 : $ 61,273.26 : $ 52,231.74 : $ (5,145.00)
5060 Taxes $ 407.19 : $ 38.15 : $ - 8 (369.04)
5090 Miscellaneous Expenses $ 12.60 : $ - $ - $ (12.60)
5090.12 Travel & Training $ 9,450.00 | $ 2,936.91 | $ 450.14 : $ (6,062.95)
5090.41 Dues & Subscriptions $ 1,260.00 : $ 2,555.00 : $ - $ 1,295.00
5090.44 Entertainment Expense $ 4310 : $ - $ 43.10
5090.48 Advertisements $ 1,838.74 : $ 613.74 ' $ 135.00 : $ (1,090.00)
5220 Operating Lease Expenses

5220.1 Postage Lease Expense $ 554.40 : $ 132.00 : $ - $ (422.40)
5220.2 Water Cooler Lease Expense $ 441.00 i $ 105.00 | $ 35.00 : $ (301.00)
5220.4 Copier - Lease $ 4,973.09 | $ 92263 : $ 815.38 : $ (3,235.08)
5220.3 Parking Lease Expense $ 1,890.00 | $ - $ - $ (1,890.00)
5015.26 Bank Service Charges $ 83.79  $ - 3 - 8 (83.79)
5210 Interest Expense $ 1.00: $ - $ - $ (1.00)
6800 Communication/Info Systems $ 27,892.33 : $ 3,71251 ' $ 3,640.34 ' $ (20,539.48)
Contingency $ 1,000,000.00 : $ - $ - $ (1,000,000.00)
Total Expenses $ 4,588,526.26 : $ 438,688.38  $ 571,140.91 ' $ (3,578,696.97)
Total Net Profit $ 844,365.03 : $ (501,140.86): $ (512,105.55): $ (1,857,611.44)




Pending Revenue

Amount Month Grant Status
$ 67,995.52 July-25 5311 Submitted 02/12/2026
$ 67,437.93 Aug-25 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Sep-25 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Oct-25 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Nov-25 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Dec-25 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Jan-26 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 67,437.93 Feb-26 5311 Pending Previous Month Approval - 12 Month Average
$ 1,303.33 November-25 Fuel Tax Return
$ 1,365.24 December-25 Fuel Tax Return Submitted - 190 days process
$ 1,342.56 January-26 Fuel Tax Return
$ 544,072.16 Total Pending Revenue

Account Balances as of 01/30/2026

Checking Account $ 22,379.27
Match Account $ 14,871.90
Interest Account $ 655,747.26
CD $ 1,023,006.97

Grand Total $ 1,716,005.40




	1.) 01.12.2026 Minutes
	2.) FYTD Budget
	Budget-Updated Monthly

	3.) Pending Payments
	Sheet1

	5.) Title VI - Resolution
	4.) 03.09.2025 Title VI Plan (Draft)
	Insert from: "3.) Pending Payments.pdf"
	Sheet1

	Insert from: "2.) FYTD Budget.pdf"
	Budget-Updated Monthly


